
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

Video Conference6:00 PMMonday, August 10, 2020

Due to an imminent threat to public health and safety arising from the COVID-19 

pandemic, this meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be held via 

videoconference.  The members of the Commission will participate remotely via 

videoconference.  No facility shall be available for the public to attend in person. 

Members of the public may participate in the meeting remotely via broadcast by webinar 

or telephone through the following URL location:

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.

When: Aug 10, 2020 06:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada)

Topic: City of Grand Prairie - Planning & Zoning Meeting

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://gptx.zoom.us/j/97218496988?pwd=MzIzNlI2MlF2NDZ0cTNMTWpVTzE3QT09

Passcode: gdARBp467f

Or iPhone one-tap : 

    US: +13462487799,,97218496988#,,,,,,0#,,4715628575#  or 

+14086380968,,97218496988#,,,,,,0#,,4715628575#

Or Telephone:

    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

        US: +1 346 248 7799  or +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or 

+1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923  or +1 301 715 8592

Webinar ID: 972 1849 6988

Passcode: 4715628575

    International numbers available: https://gptx.zoom.us/u/abcvES0qdn

All meeting participants will be automatically muted until it is their turn to speak.  To be 

recognized to speak, use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting platform.  Those 

joining the meeting by phone may press *9 to raise your hand.  After speaking, please 

remute your phone by pressing *6. 

Any speaker wishing to visually display documents in connection with a presentation must 

submit them to sware@gptx.org and msespinoza@gptx.org in PDF format no later than 

3:00 o’clock p.m. on Monday, August 10th.

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020



August 10, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Call to Order - Commissioner Briefing 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all 

items on the agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for 

information or presentations.  All interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are 

taped.

*Agenda Review

*Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting During COVID-19

                                                 __________________________________

                                                                    Public Hearing                                                             

                                                           6:30 p.m. Video Conference

                                                 __________________________________

                                                  Chairperson Joshua Spare Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag 

Citizen Comments -  Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes 

on any item not the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

20-10218 Approval of Minutes of the July 27, 2020 P&Z meeting. 

PZ Draft Minutes 07-27-2020Attachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020



August 10, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

20-10219 P190101 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 2 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat 

for Greenway Trails, Phase 2, 108 residential Lots and 4 open space/common lots.  

53.338 acres out of the J. Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, in the City of Grand 

Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-Planned Development and generally located 

west of F.M. 661, east of SH-360, and north of U.S. Hwy 287.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Phase 2 Overview.pdf

Exhibit C - Final Plat.pdf

Attachments:

20-10220 P200302 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 3 (Commissioner Spare/City Council 

District 6).  Final Plat consisting of 131 residential lots and 7 common lots on 53.315 

acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, 

Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-322 Generally located north of US-287, east of 

SH-360, and west of FM-661. The applicant is Justin Bosworth, DR Horton, the 

consultant is Edward Eckart, Goodwin and Marshall, and the owner is Benjamin 

Clark, D.R. Horton.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Phase 3 Overview.pdf

Exhibit C - Final Plat.pdf

Attachments:

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced.

Items for Individual Consideration

Public Hearing

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020



August 10, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

5 20-10158 Z200701/CP200701 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - January Hill (City Council 

District 5).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan for January Hill, a proposed 

development with Single Family Townhouse, Multi-Family, and General Retail Uses 

on 22.5 acres. Tracts 3.1, 3.4, 3.6 P H Ford Survey, Abstract No. 1711, Tracts 4.1, 

4.2, 4.7, and 4.9, Joseph C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1729, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-108, PD-196, SF-4, and GR, within the SH-161 

Corridor Overlay District, and generally located west of SH-161 on the south side of 

January Ln. (On June 27, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this case 

by a vote of 9-0)

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings.pdf

Attachment i - Proposed PD Standards.pdf

Attachments:

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020



August 10, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

20-10221 SU200802/S200802 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Jack In The Box (City 

Council District Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with a 

drive-through on 1.19 acres.  Lot 4, Block B, Epic West Towne Crossing Phase 1, 

City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH 161 

Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3146 S HWY 161.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items.pdf

Attachment i - Examples of Enhanced Landscape Area.pdf

Attachments:

Adjournment

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on 08/07/2020

Monica Espinoza

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10218 Name: Approval of Minutes of the July 27, 2020 P&Z
meeting.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/28/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/10/2020

Title: Approval of Minutes of the July 27, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 07-27-2020

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
Approval of Minutes of the July 27, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 JULY 27, 2020 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Josh Spare, Vice-Chairperson Shawn Connor, 
Secretary Max Coleman, and Commissioners, Cheryl Smith, Julia Perez, Bill Moser, Eric Hedin, 
Warren Landrum, Clayton Fisher. 
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  None 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Deputy City Manager Bill Crolley, Bill Hills, Savannah Ware, Chief 
City Planner, Charles Lee, Senior Planner, Mark Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney, Brett 
Huntsman, Transportation Planner, Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Josh Spare called the meeting to order by Video Conference at 6:42 p.m. and 
Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, and Commissioner Hedin led the pledge of allegiance 
to the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
Citizen Comments: None  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of July 13, 2020.  
  
CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #2- P200705 - Preliminary Plat - Jefferson at 
Grand Prairie, Lots 1 and 2, Block 1 (City Council District 6).  Preliminary Plat creating one 
commercial lot and one residential lot on 19.74 acres.  Tract 17, Stephen B McCommas Survey, 
Abstract No. 888, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-400, within the I-20 
Corridor Overlay District, generally located south of I-20 on the west side of Vineyard Rd, and 
addressed as 1225 W Interstate 20.  Applicant: Holly Williams, Kimley-Horn & Associates and 
Property Owner: Eric Clayton, JLH Inc Loop 9 Joint Venture. 
 
 
Item #3 – P200706- Vacating Plat - Cambridge Hills Addition (City Council District 5).  
Vacating Plat for Cambridge Hills Addition.  Tracts 3.1, 3.4, 3.6 P H Ford Survey, Abstract No. 
1711, Tracts 4.1, 4.2, 4.7, and 4.9, Joseph C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1729, City of Grand 
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-108, PD-196, SF-4, and GR, within the SH-161 
Corridor Overlay District, and generally located west of SH-161 on the south side of January Ln. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, JULY 27, 2020 
 

2 
 

 
 

Agent: Brian Moore, GFF, Applicant: Hamilton Peck, Hamilton Commercial LLC, and Property 
Owner: Bob Brueggemeyer, Various Opportunities. 
 
 
Item #4- RP200701 - Replat - Dalworth Hills Addition Revised, Lot 24-R, Block 3 (City Council 
District 1).  Replat of Lot 24-R , Block 3, Dalworth Park Addition, establishing one industrial lot 
on 0.763 acres.  Adjoining Lots 19, 21, 22, 23 and 24 Block 3, Dalworth Park Addition, City of 
Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial, generally located northeast of N.W. 
Dallas Street, and N.W. 25th Street, addressed as 2470 N.W. Dallas Street. Agent: Tony 
Shotwell and Property Owner: Robby Boydston, Combicut, Inc. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #5 - Z200701/CP200701 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - 
January Hill (City Council District 5).   
 
  
Vice Chairperson Connor moved to approve the minutes, cases P200705, P200706, RP200701 
and table case Z200701/CP200701.  
 
Motion: Connor     
Second:  Moser                                
Ayes: Connor, Moser, Landrum, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Perez, Hedin, Spare 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 

ITEM FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDREATION: Item # 6 S200703 - Site Plan - Jefferson at 
Grand Prairie (City Council District 6).  Site Plan for a multi-family development with 23.03 
dwelling units per acre on 16.5 acres.  Tract 17, Stephen B McCommas Survey, Abstract No. 
888, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-400, within the I-20 Corridor 
Overlay District, generally located south of I-20 on the west side of Vineyard Rd, and addressed 
as 1225 W Interstate 20. Applicant: Holly Williams, Kimley-Horn & Associates and Property 
Owner: Eric Clayton, JLH Inc Loop 9 Joint Venture. 

 
Ms. Ware gave a presentation stated the applicant intends to develop 16.5 acres for multi-family 
use.  The Site Plan includes 380 multi-family units in 14 residential buildings and one 
leasing/clubhouse building.  The property includes a linear open space amenity that will connect to 
a trail system that will be designed around an existing pond.  Trail amenities include seating, pet 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, JULY 27, 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

stations, and plaza gathering spaces.  Other amenities include an outdoor kitchen with seating, a 
grill, and shade structure, a rectangular pool with a sun shelf feature, private yards for ground floor 
residents, and a fitness center in the leasing building. A drive off of the I-20 frontage road will 
provide access to both the future commercial and proposed multi-family developments.  The 
applicant is proposing to use an existing drive off of Lake Ridge Pkwy to provide access to the 
multi-family.  This drive is located between the Quick Trip convenience store and Staybridge Hotel 
(currently under construction).  The drive is located on hotel property.  The applicant has obtained 
written permission from the property owner to make improvements and extend the existing access 
easement to the property line.  
The applicant requested three variances and two of them directly related to the design incentives we 
have from the Appendix W. 

1. Maximum Percentage of One-Bedroom Units – the proposal includes 63% one-bedroom 
units when a maximum of 60% is allowed. 

2. Garage Parking Spaces – the proposal includes 19.8% garages when 30% garages are 
required. 

3. Covered Parking Spaces – the proposal includes 10% covered parking spaces when 20% 
is required. 

 The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the proposal as requested 
with the condition that the buildings are constructed with the materials and design shown on the 
building elevations. 
 
Chairperson Josh Spare asked how many guest lots they have on the property. Ms. Ware stated they 
are required to have 10% of the total which comes out to 58 spots.  
Chairperson Spare asked if the city noticed any historical problems with only 10% and people 
parking on the street and in neighborhoods. Ms. Ware stated it depends from project to project but 
they are meeting the required spaces. 
Chairperson Spare asked is Vineyard currently marked with no parking signs and is it something 
that can be done. Ms. Ware replied it is currently not marked as no parking but it is definitely 
something that can be done. 
Bill Crolley stated they’ve had a couple of things on different complexes around the city and the 
ones he is familiar with stated they do not want to pay for a garage or carport and has lead them to 
change the requirement to 10%. They will continue to monitor if 10% isn’t enough they will look 
into adding no parking signs or maybe look into increasing more guest spaces. 
Commissioner Moser stated from personal experience when he offers garages/carports he usually 
charges $50-$100 more for a carport and $100-$200 more for a garage. On average 75% of the time 
people opt out for the lower end and not have covered parking. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, JULY 27, 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

Commissioner Smith asked if the design was three stories because before they had the concern if 
tenants that high could look into the property surrounding the complex. Ms. Ware stated when the 
zoning came through the applicant included some exhibits that showed the distance with an existing 
tree line along Vineyard and which would also include a masonry wall.  
Commissioner Perez asked how high the masonry wall will be. Ms. Ware stated it was originally 6ft 
tall but up it to 8ft tall due to adjacent neighbors concerns. 
 Applicant Miller Sylvan with JPI Inc., 600 E Los Colinas Blvd. Irving, TX. 75039 stated before 
they start any design of any project, they do a lot of market research and all of their site plans are 
bedded internally by onsite property management to help drive the design. They have built over 350 
communities in the last 30 years, over 100,000 apartment homes and they try to learn from each one 
and make sure they are responding from what they learn. These variances have been a part of this 
site plan from the beginning and have driven the design in terms of how many garages and carports 
they have on site. Staff has made it very clear they need to meet certain thresholds of quality for 
those to be considered. Parking standard as a company is 1 space per bedroom and a quarter space 
per unit per guest which makes the parking ratio 1.75 per unit and the city code requires 1.52. They 
are providing 87 spaces more than what is required based on their internal data. For covered parking 
they look at supply and demand for the right ratio. 30% of the units will have a private garage and 
15% of the units will have access to carports which in terms equals to 45% having some kind of 
covered parking option. He also stated if you have too many garages, tenants end up not using them 
or end up using them as storage. He continues to say he doesn’t want for this to be misconstrued as 
a deviation from quality and he hopes to have shown they are going above and beyond in a lot of the 
areas and asks for the variances to be granted. 
 
Applicant David Martin 2728 N Harwood St. stated these variances were included in the zoning 
request and council asked they review at the site plan stage. He went on to state they are exceeding 
Appendix W requirements by meeting all three of the categories and also exceeding code 
requirements on open space, landscape, trees and screening. He ended by stated he respectfully asks 
the commissioners to approve these variances. 
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case S200703as recommended by staff.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second: Perez                            
Ayes:  Connor, Moser, Landrum, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Perez, Hedin, Spare 
Nays: None 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, JULY 27, 2020 
 

5 
 

 
 

Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Moser moved to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 7:12 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Joshua Spare, Chairperson  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________  
Max Coleman, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10219 Name: P190101 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 2

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/29/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/10/2020

Title: P190101 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 2 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat for Greenway
Trails, Phase 2, 108 residential Lots and 4 open space/common lots.  53.338 acres out of the J.
Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, in the City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-
Planned Development and generally located west of F.M. 661, east of SH-360, and north of U.S. Hwy
287.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Phase 2 Overview.pdf

Exhibit C - Final Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P190101 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 2 (City Council District 6). Final Plat for Greenway Trails,
Phase 2, 108 residential Lots and 4 open space/common lots. 53.338 acres out of the J. Lawrence Survey,
Abstract No. 616, in the City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-Planned Development and
generally located west of F.M. 661, east of SH-360, and north of U.S. Hwy 287.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Final Plat for Greenway Trails, Phase 2, 108 residential Lots and 4 open space/common lots. 53.338 acres out
of the J. Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, in the City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-
Planned Development and generally located west of F.M. 661, east of SH-360, and north of U.S. Hwy 287.

ADJACENT LAND USE:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and land use of surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North City of Mansfield Undeveloped/Gas Well Pad Site
South PD-399 for Mixed Use DevelopmentUndeveloped/Gas Well Pad Sites
West PD-322 for Mixed Use DevelopmentUndeveloped/Gas Well Pad Site; SH 360
East Agriculture (A) District Undeveloped; FM 661

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10219, Version: 1

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North City of Mansfield Undeveloped/Gas Well Pad Site
South PD-399 for Mixed Use DevelopmentUndeveloped/Gas Well Pad Sites
West PD-322 for Mixed Use DevelopmentUndeveloped/Gas Well Pad Site; SH 360
East Agriculture (A) District Undeveloped; FM 661

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create 108 residential lots and 5 non-residential lots to facilitate single-family
development.

HISTORY:

· August 8, 2006: City Council approved PD-322 (Z060601/CPA060601), zoning 384.27 acres for single-
family residential, including TND (Traditional Neighborhood Development) and mixed use
regional/employment center uses.

· 2007-2008: Multiple gas wells were permitted in and around the property which impacted the potential
layout of residential lots within PD-322: Merrill 1H & 2H, permitted 2007; and Orr Unit 1H-4H,
permitted 2008

· August 30, 2016: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat (P160301) for
Greenway Trails, including a preliminary layout for 5 residential phases and depicting 135’ Tarrant
Regional Water District (TRWD) pipeline easement cutting through majority of TND portion of original
PD.

· 2016-2019: TRWD constructs water line through majority of TND portion of original PD.

· April 1, 2019: Planning and Zoning Commission approved Final Plat for Greenway Trails, Ph. 1
consisting of 98 residential lots and 4 non-residential lots.

· March 3, 2020: City Council approved an amendment to PD-322 (Case Number Z060601A), removing
the TND elements from Phase 5.

DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS:

Phase 2 depicts 108 residential lots developed under the Type 1, Type 2, and Type 3 zoning schemes detailed in
PD-322A. The required lot dimensions are outlined in the following table:

Table 2: Development Standards

Type 1 Type 2 Type 3

Number of Lots 22 49 37

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) 9,000 7,800 8,640

Min. Lot Width (ft.) 75 65 72

Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 120 120 120

Min House Size (sq. ft.) 2,000 1,800; 2,000 2,000

Min Front Setback (ft.) 25 25 25

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10219, Version: 1

The developer has established the required Public Improvement District (PID) for this development.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee recommends approval with the following conditions:

1. Landscaping and screening wall plans shall be submitted and approved by staff prior to filing
of the plat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



WIN TERG REEN STREET

(50' R.O
.W
. W

ID
T H P

ER IN S T . N O
. 2017006, P.R.E.C

.T .)

WA LN
UT RIDGE DRIVE

(50
' R
.O

.W
. W

ID
T H
 P
ER
 IN
S T
. N
O
. 2
01
70
06
, 
P.
R.
E.
C
.T
.)

WA LN
UT RIDGE DRIVE

(50
' R
IG

HT
-O
F-
WA

Y  
WI
DT
H 
PE
R 
IN
S T.
 N
O
. 
20
17
00
6,
 P
.R
.E
.C

.T
.)

LO T  1, BLO C K  1
RIC HLAN D CH AM BER S  C EDAR
CREEK  IN T ERCO N N EC T  ADDIT IO N

IN S T . N O. 1510855
D.R .E.C .T .

REM A IN DER O F C ALLED 289.33 AC RES
D.R . HO R T ON  - T EX AS , L.T .D.
IN S T . N O. 1924841

D.R .E.C .T .

CALLED  34.07 AC RES
U N ITED  S T A TES  O F AM ERIC A
VO L. 6 76, PG . 775

D.R .E.C .T .

GR
EE
N
W
AY
 T
RA
IL
S  
PH
A
S E
 1

IN S
T .
 N
O.
 20
17
00
6

P.R
.E
.C

.T
.

GR
EE
N
W
AY
 T
RA
IL
S  
PH
A
S E
 1

IN S
T .
 N
O.
 20
17
00
6

P.R
.E
.C

.T
.

B L O C
K  1 6

B L O C
K  1 7

B L O C K  1 7

B L O C K  1 6

B L O C K  6

B L O C
K  6

B
L

O
C

K
 

6

B
L

O
C

K
 

1

B
L

O
C

K
 

1
B

L
O

C
K

 
1

B L O C
K  1

B L O C K  1

B L O C
K  1

B L O C
K  1

B L O C
K  6

ELM CREEK  LANE

AP
RIL
 BR
EEZ
E T
RA
IL

CO
RN
ER
S T O
NE
 LN
.

CORNERS T ONE LANE

APRIL BREEZE TRAIL

PO I N T O F
BE G I N N I N G

"TR A C T  2"

15' U .E.25' B.L.

F.M
. H

IG
HW

AY
 6

61
(1
0
0
'
 W
I
D
T
H
 
R
IG
H
T
-
O
F
-
W
A
Y
)

(80' RIG HT -O F-WAY  W IDT H PER

IN S T . N O. 20 17006, P.R.E.C .T .)

WA
LN

UT
 R

ID
GE

 D
RI

VE
(5
0
'
 R
I
G
H
T
-O
F
-
W
A
Y
 
W
I
D
T
H
 
P
E
R
 
IN
S
T.
 N
O
.
 
2
0
1
7
0
0
6
,
 
P
.
R
.
E
.
C
.
T
.
)

PO I N T O F
CO MM E N C I N GCON CRET E M ON U M EN T  FO U N D

PO I N T O F
BE G I N N I N G
" TR A C T  1"

15
' U
.E
.

25
' B
.L
.

25
' B
.L
.

15
' U
.E
.

25
' B
.L
.

15
' U
.E
.

2
5
' 
B
.
L
.

1
5
' 
U
.
E
.

2
5
' 
B
.
L
.

1
5
' 
U
.
E
.

1
5
' 
U
.
E
.

2
5
' 
B
.
L
.

1
5
' 
U
.
E
.

2
5
' 
B
.
L
.

1
5
' 
U
.
E
.

2
5
' 
B
.
L
.

25' B.L.

15' U .E.

15' U .E.

25' B.L.

GR
EE
N
W
AY
 T
RA
IL
S  
PH
A
S E
 1

IN S
T .
 N
O.
 20
17
00
6

P.R
.E
.C

.T
.

LO T  1, BLO C K  1
RIC HLAN D CH AM BER S  C EDAR
CREEK  IN T ERCO N N EC T  ADDIT IO N

IN S T . N O. 1510855
D.R .E.C .T .

GR
EE
N
W
AY
 T
RA
IL
S  
PH
A
S E
 1

IN S
T .
 N
O.
 20
17
00
6

P.R
.E
.C

.T
.

GREEN
W
AY  T RAILS  PHAS E 1

IN S T . N
O. 2017006

P.R.E.C
.T .

F.M
. H

IG
HW

AY
 6

61
(1
0
0
'
 W
I
D
T
H
 
R
IG
H
T
-
O
F
-
W
A
Y
)

ELM CREEK  LANE

WA
LN

UT
 R

ID
GE

 D
RI

VE
(5
0
'
 R
I
G
H
T
-O
F
-
W
A
Y
 
W
I
D
T
H
 
P
E
R
 
IN
S
T.
 N
O
.
 
2
0
1
7
0
0
6
,
 
P
.
R
.
E
.
C
.
T
.
)

15' U .E.

25' B.L.

15
' U
.E
.

25
' B
.L
.

15
' U
.E
.

15
' U
.E
.

25
' B
.L
.

15
' U
.E
.

25
' B
.L
.

15' B.L.

25
' B
.L
.

15
' U
.E
.

15
' U
.E
.

25
' B
.L
.

25' B.L.

15' U .E.
25' B.L.

15' U .E.

25' B.L.

15' U .E.

25' B.L.

15' U .E.

25' B.L.

15' B.L. &
 U .E.

15' 
U .E

.

25' 
B.L

.

15
' U
.E
.

25
' B
.L
.

15' B.L.

15' B.L.
25
' B
.L
.

15
' U
.E
.

15' B.L.

1
5
' 
B
.
L
.

1
5
' 
B
.
L
.

15' U .E.

25' B.L.

RE
M A

IN
DE
R 
O
F

CA
LL
ED

 28
9.
33
 A
C
RE
S

D.R
. H
O
R T
O
N  
-

TEX
AS
, L
.T
.D
.

IN S
T .
 N
O.
 19
24
84
1

D.R
.E.
C
.T
.

REM A IN DER O F C ALLED 289.33 AC RES
D.R . HO R T ON  - T EX AS , L.T .D.
IN S T . N O. 1924841

D.R .E.C .T .

REM A
IN
DER O

F C
ALLED 289.33 AC

RES

D.R
. HO

R T ON
 - T EX

AS , L.T .D.

IN S T . N
O. 1924841

D.R
.E.C

.T .

F.M
. H

IG
HW

AY
 6

61
(1
0
0
'
 W
I
D
T
H
 
R
IG
H
T
-
O
F
-
W
A
Y
)

(PU BLIC  R/W )

(PU BLIC  R/W )

(PU
BL
IC
 R
/W

)
(PU

BLIC
 R/W

)

(PU
BL
IC
 R
/W

)

(PU
BLIC

 R/W
)

(PU BLIC  R/W )

PO I N T O F
BE G I N N I N G
" TR A C T  3"

B L O C
K  1 6

B L O C
K  6

B L O C K  1

B L O C K  1

B L O C K  1

B L O C K  1

B L O C K  6

B L O C K  6

BRANC H HO LLOW DRIVE

B L O C K  6

B L O C K  1

O P E N  S P A C E

O P E N  S P A C E

O P E N  S P A C E

O P E N  S P A C E

O P E N  S P A C E

O P E N  S P A C E

O P E N  S P A C E

O P E N  S P A C E

O P E N  S P A C E

B L O C K  6

BLO C K  6

L F E  =54 0 . 0 0 '
L F E  =54 0 . 0 0 '

L F E  =54 0 . 0 0 '

L F E  =
54 0 . 0 0 '

L F E  =

54 0 . 0 0 '

L F E  =

54 0 . 0 0 '

L F E  =

54 0 . 0 0 '

L F E  =54 0 . 0 0 '

13
10 , 15 0
SQ .

FT .

14
10 , 15 0
SQ .

FT .

12
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

11
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

15
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

16
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

17
9, 3 27
SQ .

FT .

18
9, 1 95
SQ .

FT .

9
8, 8 44
SQ .

FT .

8
9, 1 45
SQ .

FT .

10
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

7
9, 0 15
SQ .

FT .

5
8, 9 98
SQ .

FT .

2
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

3
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

4
8, 5 36
SQ .

FT .6
9, 0 09
SQ .

FT .

19
9, 3 52
SQ .

FT .

20
9, 3 52
SQ .

FT .

21
9, 0 43
SQ .

FT .

22
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

23
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

1
8, 9 50
SQ .

FT .

24
10 , 15 0
SQ .

FT .

61X
11 8 ,2 7 7
SQ . F T.

25
10 , 07 5
SQ .

FT .

26
9, 3 75
SQ .

FT .

27
9, 3 75
SQ .

FT .

28
9, 3 75
SQ .

FT .

29
9, 3 75
SQ .

FT .

30
9, 3 75
SQ .

FT .

31
9, 3 95
SQ .

FT .

32
10 , 71 3
SQ .

FT .

33
10 , 10 5
SQ .

FT .

34
9, 5 40
SQ .

FT .

15
10 , 15 0
SQ .

FT .

10
8, 3 06
SQ .

FT .

14
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

13
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

12
8, 3 89
SQ .

FT .

11
8, 2 98
SQ .

FT .

6
8, 2 79
SQ .

FT .

9
8, 2 99
SQ .

FT .

8
8, 2 93
SQ .

FT .

7
8, 2 86
SQ .

FT .

3
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

5
8, 2 73
SQ .

FT .

4
8, 1 76
SQ .

FT .

1
9, 1 19
SQ .

FT .

2
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

43
8, 5 91
SQ .

FT .

42
10 , 73 9
SQ .

FT .

41
8, 8 68
SQ .

FT .

37
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

39
11 , 33 1
SQ .

FT .

36
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

35
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

38
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

40
7, 9 00
SQ .

FT .

46
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

48
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

47
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

44
9, 1 17
SQ .

FT .

45
8, 0 05
SQ .

FT .

90X
90 1 ,9 6 0
SQ .

FT .

19
10 , 10 3
SQ .

FT .

18
14 , 35 7
SQ .

FT .

91X
13 , 06 8
SQ .

FT .

21
11 , 58 7
SQ .

FT .

20
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

22
11 , 19 2
SQ .

FT .

23
15 , 39 5
SQ .

FT .
24

13 , 40 4
SQ .

FT .

25
10 , 89 1
SQ .

FT .

26
9, 6 08
SQ .

FT .

27
10 , 79 4
SQ .

FT .

28
10 , 14 9
SQ .

FT .

29
11 , 26 2
SQ .

FT .

30
10 , 93 1
SQ .

FT .

31
10 , 56 6
SQ .

FT .

32
9, 3 27
SQ .

FT .

33
10 , 69 5
SQ .

FT .

34
10 , 69 5
SQ .

FT .

35
11 , 35 3
SQ .

FT .

36
11 , 61 0
SQ .

FT .

38
9, 0 02
SQ .

FT .

42
9, 0 14
SQ .

FT .

39
9, 0 05
SQ .

FT .

40
9, 0 08
SQ .

FT .

41
9, 0 11
SQ .

FT .

44
9, 3 42
SQ .

FT .

43
9, 0 17
SQ .

FT .

37
10 , 50 6
SQ .

FT .

11
8, 6 88
SQ .

FT .

3
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

10
8, 8 05
SQ .

FT .

2
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

17
14 , 84 8
SQ .

FT .

9
8, 9 22
SQ .

FT .

16
15 , 34 7
SQ .

FT .

8
9, 0 38
SQ .

FT .

15
11 , 44 9
SQ .

FT .

7
9, 1 04
SQ .

FT .

14
9, 6 43
SQ .

FT .

6
9, 1 34
SQ .

FT .

13
8, 8 19
SQ .

FT .

5
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

12
8, 5 72
SQ .

FT .

4
9, 0 00
SQ .

FT .

1
7, 9 20
SQ .

FT .

49
7, 8 00
SQ .

FT .

59X
12 8 ,8 5 8
SQ .

FT .

34X
1, 0 30
SQ .

FT .

N  8 7°41'08" E   218.11'

N  8 7°41'08" E   217.93'

N 3
7°3
0'
14
" E
   
32
4.
34
'

N  5
2°29'46" W

   358.50'

N 3
7°3
0'
14
" E
   
32
4.
34
'

F IR EFL Y C O U RT

R =
5
40

.0
0
'L

=4
7 2

.9
5'

∆ =
50

° 1
0'5

4"

CB
=
N 6

2
° 3

5 '4
1"
E

C L
=4

57
.98

'

R
=
2
5
0
.0
0'

L
=2

18
.9

6'
∆ =

5 0
° 10

'54
"

C
B=

N
6
2 °

3
5'

41
"E

C L
=2

12.
0 3'

R
=
2
5
0.
0
0'

L
=3

0
6.8

7
'∆

=7
0° 1

9'4 5
"

C
B
=
S 6

0
° 5

1'1
3"

E
CL

= 2
87

.96
'

R
= 49

5.0
0'

L=
3 7

6.0
0

'∆
=4

3
° 3

1'2
0

"

CB
=S 7

4°
15

'26
"E

C
L=

36
7.
03

'

N 3
7°3
0'
14
" E
   
32
4.
34
'

N  5
2°29'46" W

   358.50'

N 87°41'08" E
225.62'

S 0
0°
1
9'
55
" E
  
 2
03
2.
08
'

S 0
0°
1
9'
55
" E
  
 2
03
2.
08
'

N 51°45'54" W   777.89'

N 51°45'54" W   777.89'

N 4
0°3
6'1
0" 
E   
49
8.6
8'

N 4
0°3
6'1
0" 
E   
49
8.6
8'

N 64
°18'3

9" E 
  171

.03'

134
.51'

N 3
7°2
5'3
2" 
E

N 37°25'32" E
134.51'

N 
0
1°
31
'1
3"
 W
  
 5
52
.3
4'

N 
0
1°
31
'1
3"
 W
  
 5
52
.3
4'

N 
0
2°
18
'5
2"
 W
  
 3
78
.5
3'

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5 L6

L7

L8

C1

C2

C3

C4
C
5

L17

L21

L22

L= 47
.72

'

L
=
7
1.
2
8
'

N  5
2°29'46" W

   310.46'

N  5
2°29'46" W

   296.90'

N
 0
0
°1
9
'
5
5
"
 W
 
  
9
8
.
3
7
'

N  5
2°29'46" W

   132.75'

N  5 2°29'46" W
124.97'

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L2
8

L29

C7

L30

L31

L32

L33

L34

L35

L36

L37

L38

L39

L40 L41

L42

20.00'

7
5
.0
0
'

N  4
3°0
9'
24
" 
E

90
.49
'

N  5
6°2
9'
09
" 
E

93
.36
'

N  7
0°03

'37
" E

93.3
6'

N  8 3°04'32" E

87.66'

N  8 7°41'08" E
65.00'

N  8 7°41'08" E
85.00'

68.50'

290.00'

25
.00
'
25
.00
'

2
5
.0
0
'

2
5
.0
0
'

2
5
.0
0
'

2
5
.0
0
'

290.00'

S 
0
0
°
1
9
'5
5
"
 
E

1
2
9
8
.
5
7
'

72
.00
'

N  4
5°0
6'
16
" 
E

99.1
2'

69.2
6'

131
.69'

87.8
7'

N  6
4°18

'39
" E 

  19
5.1

8'

N 4
0°3
4'
08
" E
   
50
4.
00
'

N
 0
2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 W
 
  
4
2
0
.
9
7
'

N
 0
0
°1
9
'
5
5
"
 W
 
  
7
8
9
.
3
1
'

2
7
4
.0
0
'

N
 0
1
°3
1
'
1
3
"
 
W

99.68'

33.50'

N
 0
0
°1
9
'
5
5
"
 W
 
  
7
8
9
.
3
1
'

N  5
6°32'59" W

   144.00'

N 3
3°2
7'
01
" E
   
15
7.
28
'

N  5
1°45'54" W

   358.77'

6
6
.0
5
'

N
 0
°2
4
'
3
3
"
 
W

15

10

14

13

12

11

6

9

8

7

3
5

4 12

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

13

14

12

11

15

16

17

18

9

8

10

7

5
234

6

19

20
21 22 23

24

43

42
41

37

39

36

35

38

40

46

48

47

44

45

61X
11 8 ,2 7 7
SQ . F T.

90X
90 1 ,9 6 0
SQ .

FT .

90X
90 1 ,9 6 0
SQ .

FT .

90X
90 1 ,9 6 0
SQ .

FT .

90X
90 1 ,9 6 0
SQ .

FT .

1

37 26

27

28

29

30
313233

34

35

36

38

42

39

40

41

44

43

19

18

21

20

22 23
24

25

Lot s : 91X

17

16

15

14

13

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

Lot s : 90X

59X
12 8 ,8 5 8
SQ .

FT .

49

TR AC T 59X

59X
12 8 ,8 5 8
SQ .

FT .

59X
12 8 ,8 5 8
SQ .

FT .

N  3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E

85
.00
'

65
.00
'

N  3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E

65
.00
'

12.72' 52
.97
'

37
.52
'

27
.91
'

64
.00
'

1.46' 62.5
8'

30.7
8'

33.64'
54.03'

10.00'
65.00' 65.00'

75.00'

75.00'
65.00'

65.00'

13.11'

L=52 .0
2'

L
=6

5.15
'

L
=
65

.1
5'

L
=
5
8
.5

3
'

6.61'

77
.72
'

65
.00
'

65
.00
'

75
.00
'110.00'

110.00'

75
.00
'

65
.00
'

65
.00
'

65
.00
'

19.34'

L
=
6
0
.
6 2
'

L =
8
5
.3
6
'

L=
8
3.
75

'

L=
83

.76
'

L=8
4.03'

L=53.5
2' 23.11'

65.00' 65.00'
65.00'

N 5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W

   120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N 4
0°18'05" W

120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N 4
5°45'05" W

122.50'

N 3
6°15'16" W

122.32'

N 2
6°56'12" W

120.17'

N 1
7°37'05" W

122.45' N
 8
°1
6
'
0
9
"
 
W

1
2
2
.2
2
'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

N  2
6°43'37" W

120.00'

N 1
3°09'09" W

120.00'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

1
1
0
.0
0
'

1
1
0
.0
0
'

N 87°41'08" E   215.00'73.78'
N 85°26'54" E76.09'

N 79°29'1
5" E

76.10'
N 73°0

7'09" 
E

76.11
'

N 66
°45'0

0" E

76.1
3'

N 6
0°22

'47"
 E

76.1
4'

N 5
4°00

'31"
 E

76.
15'

N 4
7°3
8'1
1" 
E

76.
14'

N 4
0°5
8'5
3" 
E

N 3
7°3
0'1
4" 
E   
30
5.5
0'

N 52°29'46" W

76.50'

N 3
7°3
0'1
4" 
E   
25
0.0
0'

N 52°29'46" W   430.15'

S  3
7°2
8'0
8" 
W
   5
16.
16'

S  52°35'06" E   348.87'

S  64°
18'3

9" W

109.4
9'

S  4
0°3
6'1
0" 
W
   4
81.
34'

N 49°23'50" W   250.00'

N 4
0°3
6'1
0" 
E   
78
3.2
8'

82.9
1'

26.5
8'

L
=
4 1.

45
'

L=
6
8.

0
5'

L =
6
8
.0
5
'

L
=
3
9 .
6
9
'

35
.34
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

71
.00
'

115.00'

135.00'

86.0
6'

84.3
1' N 2

2°47'28" W
   125.16'

95
.64
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

81
.00
'

N  4
9°23'50" W
125.00'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.00'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.00'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.00'

N  4
9°23'50" W

   125.00'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.00'

N  4
9°23'50" W

126.50'

N 3
7°38'20" W

138.93'

N 3
0°12'45" W

126.80'

85
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

70
.50
'

65.00' 65.00'
76.00'

9.00'

N 5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

75.00'
65.00'65.00'

13.11'

L= 50.21'

L
= 62.8

1'

L=
62

.81'

L
=6

2.8
1'

L=
62

.8
1'

L=
6
2.

8
1'

L
=
6
2 .
8
1 '

L
=
6
2
.
8 1
'

L= 4.97'

64
.34
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

75
.00
'

N  4
5°32'59" W

120.32'

N 3
9°10'38" W

120.24'

N  5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W
120.00'

N  5
1°55'24" W
120.03'

1
1
9
.0
0
'

N
 0
2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

N  2
0°03'55" W

119.98'

N 1
3°41'47" W

119.89'

N  3
2°48'20" W

120.16'

N 2
6°26'06" W

120.07'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

N
 7
°1
9
'
4
3
"
 
W

1
1
9
.8
1
'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

N  4
4°21'09" W

120.00'

N  5
2°29'46" W

   120.00'

48
.12
'

N  3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E N  4 1°34'33" E

14.91'

55.5
0'

N  6
1°05

'20
" E

N  8 1°42'00" E
20.80'

41.08'
65.00'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

N  8 8°28'47" E   120.00'

110.01'66.66'41.08'
L=

44 .66 '

L
=1

20
.4
2 '

L
=
3 1
. 9
8
'

48
.12
'

23
0.6
5'

N 1
3°41'14" W

120.11'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

1
2
0
.0
0
'

1
2
0
.5
3
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

8
5
.6
7
'

74.00'

70.00'

65.00'

65.00'

65.00'

65.00'

N 3
7°3
0'
14
" E
   
12
0.
00
'

N  2 8°13'00" W
41.20'

L
=
4
5
.3

2
'

L=4
8

.17'

L
=
5
7
.3
2
'

N  8 8°28'47" E

120.00'

N  8 8°28'47" E   120.00'

N  8 8°28'47" E

120.00'

N  8 8°28'47" E

120.00'

N 3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E

12
0.0
0'

27.80'

65.00'

65.00'

65.00'

65.00'

N 3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E

12
0.0
0'

N  3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E

12
0.0
0'

N  3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E

12
0.0
0'

N  3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E

10
8.3
4'

N
 0
1
°3
1
'
1
3
"
 W
 
  
1
2
0
.
0
1
'

9
4
.0
1
'

N
 0
1
°3
1
'
1
3
"
 W
 
  
2
7
4
.
0
0
'

N  8 7°41'08" E   106.08'

65.00'

N 5
2°29'46" W

   404.00'

N 4
0°3
6'
10
" E
   
62
6.
64
'

N  6
4°09

'28
" E 

  17
0.3

7'

N 4
0°3
6'1
0" 
E   
78
3.2
8'

N 4
9°23'50" W

   125.00'

S  4
0°3
6'1
0" 
W
   4
81.
34'

N 4
0°3
6'
10
" E
   
62
6.
64
'

85
.00
'

N  3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E N  5

2°29'46" W
   120.00'

N  8 8°28'47" E   120.00'

N 5
2°29'46" W

   120.00'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

N  4
0°3
4'
08
" 
E

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.00'

L
=6

4 .
72

'

L=
7
6
.5
1'

L=
1
0
5
. 1
2
'

12
3.9
6'

10.55'

L
=
6
7
. 5
5
'

L
=
7
3
.9
3
'

L
=
7
2
.4
1'

L
=
7
2
.
4
1
'

L
=
3
6
.5
7
'

3
7
.1
4
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

6
5
.1
9
'

L= 7.28'

2.53'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

6
5
.0
0
'

6
6
.0
0
'

120.00'
105.62'

S 0
0°
1
9'
55
" E
  
 2
03
2.
08
'

S  0
5°
2
4'
35
" 
W

98
.8
0'

S 0
0°
2
4'
33
" E
  
 1
11
.1
8'

S  74°55
'20" W

   696.58
'

N 5
1°45'54" W

   125.00'

57
.54
'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

72
.00
'

9.14'

L
=

8 5
.
4
7 '

L=
9
4.

41
'

3.24'

L
=
1
0
1 .
3
9
'

L
=
6
5.

64
'

L=
67

.81
'

L
=67 .81

' L= 34.91'
L=3 7.05' L= 90.17 '

L=
96 .8

3 '

L
=9

9.
72

'

L= 17.70'

L
=
6
5
.1
4
'

L=62 .58 '

L= 1.79'
L
=6

9.
38

'

L
=6

9.3
8'

L=6
9.38

'

L=
69.3 8'

L=69.38'
L=3 0.44

'
L
=15

9.28'

L
=
1
16
.
9
0 '

3.29'

91.6
9'

72.0
0'

7.33'

N 3
9°05'14" W

125.00'

N  5
0°5
4'
46
" 
E

95
.51
'

N  5
2°39'35" W

110.34'

N  6 7°33'12" W

99.61'

N  8 1°40'53" W

99.61'

N  8 6°55'46" E

72.27'

N  8 6°21'15" W

71.01'

N 7 4°36'28" W

69.92'

N 6 2°37'40" W

72.00'

27.28'

72.00'

72.00' N 3
3°2
7'
01
" E
   
14
7.
22
'

N  1 7°55'59" W
40.82'

12
0.3
7'

N  3
5°3
3'
39
" 
E

86.40'

90.41'

98.26'

40.66'

72.0
0'

72.0
0'

161.21'

N  7 7°02'4
9" E   

130.9
3'

N 5
1°18'06" W

   116.85'

10.23'

1
1
2
.0
0
'

9
7
.5
0
'

9
1
.3
6
'

8
2
.4
3
'

7
5
.0
2
'

7
5
.0
2
'

7
5
.0
2
'

7
5
.0
2
'

7
5
.0
2
'

20.72'

5
4
.2
9
'

7
6
.6
8
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

7
5
.0
0
'

6
5
.0
0
'

N  8 7°41'08" E

120.00'

N  8 7°41'08" E

120.00'

N  8 7°41'08" E

120.00'

N  8 7°41'08" E

120.00'

N  8 8°28'47" E
120.97'

N  8 8°28'47" E
121.29'

N  8 8°28'47" E
119.73'

N  8 8°28'47" E
118.18'

N  8 8°28'47" E
116.62'

N  8 8°28'47" E
115.07'

N  8 8°28'47" E
113.51'

N  8 7°06'32" W
113.54'

N 6 9°38'24" W153.13'

N  7 8°22'28" W
125.65'

N 6 0°43'20" W200.87'

N 2
5°41'21" W

125.00'

N  3
2°45'08" W

129.97'

N
 2
°3
9
'
5
3
"
 
W

1
2
0
.8
6
'

N  2
5°41'21" W

125.00'

N
 4
°5
8
'
4
9
"
 
E

1
6
5
.7
3
'

N  1
2°3
7'
32
" 
E

18
5.4
7'

N  2
0°1
6'
14
" 
E

15
0.0
8'

N  2
7°5
4'
56
" 
E

12
9.0
7'

N  3
3°2
7'
01
" 
E

13
0.0
0'

13
0.0
0'

N 2
1°1
7'
39
" 
E

13
0.0
0'N
 9
°2
9
'
2
4
"
 
E

1
3
0
.0
0
'

N
 1
°0
5
'
4
4
"
 
E

1
3
0
.0
0
'

N
 1
°1
5
'
1
6
"
 
E

1
3
0
.0
0
'

N  1
5°2
2'
57
" 
E

13
0.0
0'

N  2
9°3
0'
39
" 
E

13
0.0
0'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.04'

N  4
9°23'50" W
125.21'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.17'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.09'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.13'

N  4
9°23'50" W

125.26'

36
.87
'

35
.13
'

C6

65
.00
'

65
.00
'

65
.00
'

77
.72
'

N 52°29'46" W
10.13'

L9

L10
L1
1

L12

L13
L1
4

L15

L16

L18

L1
9

L20

N 52°35'06" W   524.41'

S0
2
°1
8
'52
"E

11
0
.00
'

S 0
2°
1
8'
52
" E
  
 2
20
.0
0'

S 0
1°
3
1'
13
" E
  
 5
06
.2
0'

S 0
1°
3
1'
13
" E
  
 5
06
.2
0'

119.73'
N  8 8°28'47" E

125.17'
N  4

9°23'50" W

N  8 7°41'08" E   120.00'

N  8 7°41'08" E   120.00'

N
 2
°1
8
'
5
2
"
 
W

6
6
.0
0
'

N  3
7°3
0'
14
" 
E

12
0.0
0'

15.00'

12.73'
1.41'

LI NE  TABLE

LIN E #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

L21

L22

BEARING

S7 9°03'11"W

S3 0°47'46"E

S1 0°38'13"E

S0 0°24'42"E

S7 1°23'34"E

S6 4°15'26"W

N 19° 18'39"E

S4 6°19'24"E

N 37° 30'14"E

S4 2°41'08"W

S0 2°18'52"E

S4 7°18'52"E

S4 2°41'08"W

S0 1°54'53"E

S4 6°55'03"E

S8 5°36'10"W

S0 7°29'46"E

S8 2°30'14"W

N 07° 29'46"W

S8 2°30'14"W

S2 5°41'21"E

S5 2°29'46"E

DIS TANCE

48.75

94.29

53.37

23.28

13.97

50.00

14.14

16.66

50.00

14.14

50.00

14.14

14.14

50.00

14.04

14.14

17.68

14.14

14.14

14.14

3.26

27.60

LI NE  TABLE

LIN E #

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L28

L29

L30

L31

L32

L33

L34

L35

L36

L37

L38

L39

L40

L41

L42

BEARING

N40° 30'01"E

S8 2°30'14"W

N 40° 34'22"W

S4 0°34'22"E

N 82° 30'14"E

N 00° 19'55"W

S4 0°30'01"W

N 29° 56'45"E

N 78° 30'04"E

N 26° 07'43"E

N 54° 36'42"E

N 25° 10'34"E

N 49° 12'40"E

N 59° 18'26"E

S8 1°20'37"E

S7 7°41'16"E

S5 6°15'28"E

N 70° 55'35"E

S7 1°22'28"E

S3 3°16'00"E

DIS TANCE

18.36

7.07

36.78

38.35

7.07

85.45

12.77

85.72

76.17

59.93

48.26

34.21

76.34

83.62

134.55

155.90

202.77

74.58

78.49

32.25

CU R V E TABLE

CU RVE #

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

RADIU S

475.00

475.00

525.00

475.00

525.00

525.00

50.00

ARC LENGTH

19.63

179.88

246.35

322.87

7.28

217.24

15.06

DELTA ANGLE

2°22'04"

21°41 '51"

26°53 '07"

38°56 '45"

0°47'39"

23°42 '29"

17°15 '14"

CHORD BEARING

N39° 25'08"E

N 51° 27'05"E

N 50° 52'06"E

N 17° 57'09"E

N 01° 55'03"W

S5 2°27'25"W

S4 9°29'59"E

CHORD LENGTH

19.63

178.81

244.10

316.69

7.28

215.69

15.00

Fm
 66

1 R
d Gifco Rd

Seeton Rd

La
ke

vie
w 

Dr

Lone Star Rd

Double Oak Av

T win P ines
Dr

Lowe Rd

Roll ing Meadows Dr

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P190101
Greenway Trails Phase 2 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Phase 2 Overview
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 1 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 2 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 3 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 4 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 5 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 6 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 7 of 7



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10220 Name: P200302 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 3

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:7/29/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/10/2020

Title: P200302 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 3 (Commissioner Spare/City Council District 6).  Final
Plat consisting of 131 residential lots and 7 common lots on 53.315 acres out of the Joseph Lawrence
Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-322 Generally located
north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-661. The applicant is Justin Bosworth, DR Horton,
the consultant is Edward Eckart, Goodwin and Marshall, and the owner is Benjamin Clark, D.R.
Horton.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Phase 3 Overview.pdf

Exhibit C - Final Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P200302 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 3 (Commissioner Spare/City Council District 6). Final Plat
consisting of 131 residential lots and 7 common lots on 53.315 acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey,
Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-322 Generally located north of US-
287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-661. The applicant is Justin Bosworth, DR Horton, the consultant is
Edward Eckart, Goodwin and Marshall, and the owner is Benjamin Clark, D.R. Horton.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Final Plat for Greenway Trails, Phase 3, 131 residential lots and 7 open space/common lots. 53.338 acres out
of the J. Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, in the City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-
Planned Development and generally located west of F.M. 661, east of SH-360, and north of U.S. Hwy 287.

ADJACENT LAND USE:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10220, Version: 1

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and land use of surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North City of Mansfield Undeveloped/Gas Well Pad Site
South PD-399 for Mixed Use DevelopmentUndeveloped/Gas Well Pad Sites
West PD-322 for Mixed Use DevelopmentUndeveloped/Gas Well Pad Site; SH 360
East Agriculture (A) District Undeveloped; FM 661

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create 131 residential lots and 7 non-residential lots to facilitate single-family
development.

HISTORY:

· August 8, 2006: City Council approved PD-322 (Z060601/CPA060601), zoning 384.27 acres for single-
family residential, including TND (Traditional Neighborhood Development) and mixed use
regional/employment center uses.

· 2007-2008: Multiple gas wells were permitted in and around the property which impacted the potential
layout of residential lots within PD-322: Merrill 1H & 2H, permitted 2007; and Orr Unit 1H-4H,
permitted 2008

· August 30, 2016: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat (P160301) for
Greenway Trails, including a preliminary layout for 5 residential phases and depicting 135’ Tarrant
Regional Water District (TRWD) pipeline easement cutting through majority of TND portion of original
PD.

· 2016-2019: TRWD constructs water line through majority of TND portion of original PD.

· April 1, 2019: Planning and Zoning Commission approved Final Plat for Greenway Trails, Ph. 1
consisting of 98 residential lots and 4 non-residential lots.

· March 3, 2020: City Council approved an amendment to PD-322 (Case Number Z060601A), removing
the TND elements from Phase 5.

DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS:

Phase 3 depicts 131 residential lots developed under the Type 1 and Type 2 zoning schemes detailed in PD-
322A. The required lot dimensions are outlined in the following table:

Table 2: Development Standards

Type 1 Type 2

Number of Lots 37 95

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) 9,000 7,800

Min. Lot Width (ft.) 75 65

Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 120 120

Min House Size (sq. ft.) 2,000 1,800; 2,000

Min Front Setback (ft.) 25 25

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10220, Version: 1

Table 2: Development Standards

Type 1 Type 2

Number of Lots 37 95

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) 9,000 7,800

Min. Lot Width (ft.) 75 65

Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 120 120

Min House Size (sq. ft.) 2,000 1,800; 2,000

Min Front Setback (ft.) 25 25

The developer has established the required Public Improvement District (PID) for this development.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee recommends approval with the following condition:

1. Landscaping and screening wall plans shall be submitted and approved by staff prior to filing
of the plat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Fm
 66

1 R
d 

Gifco Rd

Seeton Rd

La
ke

vie
w 

Dr

Lone Star Rd

Double Oak Av

Walnut Ridge
Dr

T win P ines
Dr

Lowe Rd

Roll ing Meadows Dr

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P200302
Greenway Trails Phase 3 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Phase 3 Overview
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 1 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 2 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 3 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 4 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 5 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 6 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 7 of 7



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10158 Name: Z200701/CP200701 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan
- January Hill

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:7/10/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/10/2020

Title: Z200701/CP200701 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - January Hill (City Council District 5).  Zoning
Change and Concept Plan for January Hill, a proposed development with Single Family Townhouse,
Multi-Family, and General Retail Uses on 22.5 acres. Tracts 3.1, 3.4, 3.6 P H Ford Survey, Abstract
No. 1711, Tracts 4.1, 4.2, 4.7, and 4.9, Joseph C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1729, City of Grand
Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-108, PD-196, SF-4, and GR, within the SH-161 Corridor
Overlay District, and generally located west of SH-161 on the south side of January Ln. (On June 27,
2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this case by a vote of 9-0)

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Concept Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings.pdf

Attachment i - Proposed PD Standards.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza

Title

Z200701/CP200701 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - January Hill (City Council District 5).  Zoning Change
and Concept Plan for January Hill, a proposed development with Single Family Townhouse, Multi-Family, and
General Retail Uses on 22.5 acres. Tracts 3.1, 3.4, 3.6 P H Ford Survey, Abstract No. 1711, Tracts 4.1, 4.2, 4.7,
and 4.9, Joseph C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1729, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-108,
PD-196, SF-4, and GR, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located west of SH-161 on
the south side of January Ln. (On June 27, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this case by a
vote of 9-0)

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Zoning Change and Concept Plan for January Hill, a proposed development with Single Family Townhouse,
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10158, Version: 1

Zoning Change and Concept Plan for January Hill, a proposed development with Single Family Townhouse,
Multi-Family, and General Retail Uses on 22.5 acres. Tracts 3.1, 3.4, 3.6 P H Ford Survey, Abstract No. 1711,
Tracts 4.1, 4.2, 4.7, and 4.9, Joseph C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1729, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County,
Texas, zoned PD-108, PD-196, SF-4, and GR, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally
located west of SH-161 on the south side of January Ln.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the request is to rezone the subject property to a Planned Development District for Single
Family Townhome, Multi-Family and General Retail Uses.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-347 Industrial

South SF-4 Single Family Residential, Undeveloped

West SF-3 Single Family Residential

East SF-4 Undeveloped; SH-161

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The applicant is proposing a Planned Development District for Single Family Townhouse, Multi-Family and
General Retail Uses.  The Concept Plan depicts the elements listed below.

· A proposed retail building on 3.89 acres that is accessible from two points on January Lane.

· Twelve multi-family residential buildings and one leasing/clubhouse building on 15.97 acres. The multi
-family buildings are placed close to January Lane and configured to frame the primary internal drive
and screen surface parking lots from view.

· The drive that connects to May Lane is for emergency access only with a secured gate at the property
line and another secured gate closer to Building 13.

· Five clusters of townhome units on 2.74 acres. The townhomes are placed adjacent to existing single
family homes to serve as a buffer between the homes and the higher density multi-family buildings.

· A central open space amenity featuring trails and the preservation of existing trees. This feature serves
as a natural buffer to the adjacent single family homes.

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

The 2018 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designates this location as Medium Density
Residential.  Approval of this request will require an amendment to the FLUM.

The proposal is consistent with goals, policies, and objectives in the 2018 Comprehensive Plan, including:

· Achieve a broad housing selection for a diverse population;

· Provide housing options that serve the needs of the population throughout the stages of their lives;

· A mix of residential densities offers the City opportunities to attract and retain businesses as well as
generate higher ad valorem tax revenues than through low density residential alone; and

· Locate higher density residential uses along roadways designated as minor arterials, principle arterials

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10158, Version: 1

· Locate higher density residential uses along roadways designated as minor arterials, principle arterials
or limited access thoroughfares.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

General Retail

The applicant is proposing Neighborhood Services, Office, and General Retail-One as the base zoning districts.
100% of this tract shall be developed with non-residential uses.

Multi-Family Three

The applicant is proposing Multi-Family Three as the base zoning district with two modifications:

1. No building shall be constructed greater than four stories (Appendix W does not specify the number of
stories, just the maximum height in feet).

2. A perimeter fence with gated entry shall not be required.

Townhomes

The applicant is proposing Single Family-Townhouse (SF-T) as the base zoning district.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Concept Plan
Page 1 of 2



Exhibit B - Concept Plan
Page 2 of 2



Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings
Page 1 of 4



Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings
Page 2 of 4



Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings
Page 3 of 4



Exhibit C - Conceptual Renderings
Page 4 of 4



1904 Main Street, Lake Como, NJ 07719 T. 732.974.0198 

8 Robbins Street, Suite 102, Toms River, NJ 08753 T. 732-974-0198 

790 Newtown Yardley Rd., Suite 425, Newtown, PA 18940 T. 267-685-0276 

245 Main Street, Suite 110, Chester, NJ 07930 T. 908-879-9229 

14521 Old Katy Road, Suite 250, Houston, TX 77079 T. 281-789-6400 

1301 Central Expressway South, Suite 210, Allen, TX 75013 T. 972-534-2100 

 

 
        
                                                                                                   

Dynamic Engineering Consultants, PC 
www.dynamicec.com 

714 S. Greenville Avenue, Suite 100 
Allen, TX 75002 
T. 972-534-2100 

 

 

6. Staff will follow up with you after the DRC meeting to discuss next steps. 

Noted. 

 

General Comments 

1. Submit proposed development standards for this PD.  These standards should identify the base 

zoning districts for the different uses.  This document should also identify any requested 

variances. 

 

A. Development shall generally comply with the Concept Plan. 

 

B. Commercial development shall conform with the requirements of the MU district as 

found in Article 3, Section 2.16 of the Unified Development Code and NS, O, and 

GR-1 shall comprise the principal non-residential land uses. 

a. The following uses are prohibited: boat dealer, motorcycle dealer, laundry 

(self-serve), mini storage, and auto parts sales (new). 

b. Areas designated on the concept plan for non-residential uses are reserved 

for those uses allowed by right under Article 4 of the UDC in the NS, O, and 

GR-1 districts. Up to 100% of the space designated as non-residential uses 

on the Concept Plan may be used as either NS, O, or GR-1 uses or any 

combination of uses allowed under these districts, but such spaces 

designated on the Concept Plan shall contain only non-residential uses.  

 

C. Multi-Family and Townhome development shall comply with the development 

standards for Multi-Family Three District and Townhome district with the 

exceptions and additions listed below: 

a. The maximum allowable density shall be 25 dwelling units per gross acre. 

The total proposed # of units on the Concept Plan is (425) Multi-Family 

units and (24) Townhome units. 

b. The requirement for a perimeter fence with gated entry shall not apply. 

c. No building in the development shall be constructed greater than four 

stories. 

d. Townhomes shall require a 17-foot minimum front yard and minimum 20-

foot rear yard. 

e. Townhomes shall require a 5-foot minimum side yard if not attached and a 

0-foot minimum side yard if attached. 

 

2. Commercial development will be subject to Appendix F standards.  Residential development will 

be subject to Appendix W standards. Noted.  

 

 

Attachment i - Proposed PD Standards
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10221 Name: SU200802/S200802 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan
- Jack In The Box

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing

File created: In control:7/29/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/10/2020

Title: SU200802/S200802 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Jack In The Box (City Council District Specific
Use Permit and Site Plan for a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with a drive-through on 1.19 acres.  Lot 4,
Block B, Epic West Towne Crossing Phase 1, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-
364, within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3146 S HWY 161.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Site Plan.pdf

Exhibit C - Landscape Plan.pdf

Exhibit D - Building Elevations.pdf

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items.pdf

Attachment i - Examples of Enhanced Landscape Area.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza

Title

SU200802/S200802 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Jack In The Box (City Council District Specific Use
Permit and Site Plan for a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with a drive-through on 1.19 acres. Lot 4, Block B, Epic West
Towne Crossing Phase 1, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH 161
Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3146 S HWY 161.

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with a drive-through on 1.19 acres. Lot 4, Block
B, Epic West Towne Crossing Phase 1, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10221, Version: 1

SH 161 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3146 S HWY 161.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with a drive-through in Epic West Towne Crossing.
Restaurants with a drive-through require a Specific Use Permit when located within a Corridor Overlay
District. Development in a Planned Development District or Corridor Overlay District requires Site Plan
approval by City Council. Development at this location requires City Council approval of a Site Plan because
the property is zoned PD-364 and within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

The purpose of the Specific Use Permit process is to identify those uses which might be appropriate within a
zoning district, but due to either their location, functional or operational nature, could have potentially negative
impact upon surrounding properties; and to provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted by
further restricting or conditioning them so as to eliminate such probable negative impacts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Zoning and Land Use

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-364 Restaurant (Olive Garden)

East PD-364 HWY 161; Undeveloped
South PD-364 Restaurants/Retail (Salata, First Watch)
West PD-364 Restaurants/Retail

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The applicant intends to construct a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with a drive-through in Epic West Towne Crossing.
The site is accessible from Esplanade via shared access drives on properties to the north and south. The Site
Plan includes the building, parking spaces, fire lane and access drives, and a dumpster enclosure.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

The subject property is zoned PD-364 with a base zoning district of Commercial (C). Development is subject
to the standards in PD-364 and the Unified Development Code (UDC). The following table evaluates the
density and dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets or exceeds the density
and dimensional requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 52,007 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 172.76 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 299.48 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 21 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio .5:1 .053:1 YesCity of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10221, Version: 1

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 52,007 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 172.76 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 299.48 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 21 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio .5:1 .053:1 Yes

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 and Appendix F of the UDC. The
table below summarizes these requirements.  The proposal meets the landscape and screening requirements.

Table 3: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,200 10,114 Yes

Trees 14 14 Yes

Shrubs 104 156 Yes

Dumpster Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Masonry Enclosure Yes

APPENDIX F STANDARDS:

Building Design

The exterior building materials include porcelain tile, brick, stucco, and metal accent panels. Appendix F
contains two windows requirements. The first is that facades shall include windows in an area that equals 50%
of the overall vertical surface of all facades or that equals 50% of the length of all facades. The second
requirement is that windows shall account for 30% of the area of street-facing facades. The proposed building
elevations do not meet either of the window requirements.

Menu Items

Appendix F requires that applicants provide Menu Items from four categories: Usable Open and Pedestrian
Walkways, Site Design and Building Orientation, Building Design, and Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable
Community. The table below lists the Menu Items included in the proposal. The proposal meets the Appendix
F Menu Items requirements.

Table 4: Appendix F Menu Items

Category Amenity

Site Design and Building Orientation Strategic Parking

Site Design and Building Orientation Add Parking Lot Trees

Building Design Stone Accent

Building Design Color Contrast

Building Design Specialty Accent

Building Design Corner Treatment

Building Design Articulated Public Entrance

Building Design Roof Profile Variation

Building Design Articulation Elements

Building Design Enhanced Windows

Building Design Design Elements

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community 70% Native Plants

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community Wi-Fi

Healthy, Smart & Sustainable Community USB Charging Stations

Alternative Compliance White Concrete Pavement

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10221, Version: 1

VARIANCES:

1. 30% Windows on Street-Facing Facades. The applicant is requesting a variance to construct the
building with 21% windows on the east facade and 0% windows on the west facade when 30% is
required.

2. Total Windows. The applicant is requesting a variance to construct the building with windows along
35% of the length of all facades when 50% is required.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following condition:

1. The developer shall provide an enhanced landscape area with plantings west of the building as a
compensatory measure for 0% windows on the west facade. The enhanced landscape area shall be
comparable to the areas shown in Attachment i - Examples of Enhanced Landscape Area.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/7/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



S Hwy 161 Sb  

Mayfield Rd

Es
pl

an
ad

e  

S Hwy 161 Nb  

S Hwy 161 Svc Sb Rd

S Hwy 161 Svc Nb Rd

Swenson Ct

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number SU200802/S200802
Jack In The Box ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦20

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1





Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 1





Appendix F Menu Items Checklist 

The Appendix F Menu Items Checklist intended to help developers organize their Development Request submittal and 
communicate Menu Items choices to Staff.  This checklist is not intended to be used without first reading Appendix F.  
Developers must select a total of 12 Menu Items.  Unless otherwise indicated, each Menu Item counts as 1 Menu Item. 

Instructions: Complete checklist by indicating which Menu Items you select. After completing the checklist fill out the 
Menu Item Summary Table. 

Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Linkages 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

� Enhanced Usable Open Space Usable Open Space that exceeds the minimum requirements with 
at least four Tier 1 amenities and three or more Tier 2 amenities. 

 Tier 1 Amenities: two types of seating, active water feature, 
furnished play area, dog park, sculpture, artwork, furnished 
outdoor game area, or comparable amenity proposed by the 
developer. 

 Seasonal plantings in decorative planters, textured paving, 
living wall, mural, decorative lighting, USB charging station, 
electrical hook-up to allow programming, or a comparable 
amenity proposed by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed amenities. 
� Above-and-Beyond Usable Open Space (2) Developers who are able to demonstrate to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission and City Council that the proposed Usable 
Open Space goes above-and-beyond the Enhanced Usable Open 
Space may count the space as two Menu Items. 

 Include project narrative or exhibit that lists the proposed 
amenities and describes why the space should be considered 
above-and-beyond Usable Open Space. 

� Public Art Piece Dedicate at least 1% of the total project cost to one major public 
art piece to be centrally located. 

� Public Art Series Dedicate at least 1% of the total project cost to multiple public art 
pieces to be located throughout the development. 

Site Design & Building Orientation (Select at Least Two Menu Items) 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

� 75% Parking Behind Buildings Buildings shall be placed towards the street with 75% of off-street 
parking located to the side or rear of buildings. 

� 100% Parking Behind Buildings (1.5) Buildings shall be placed towards the street with 100% of off-
street parking located to the side or rear of buildings. 

� Add Parking Lot Trees Provide one parking lot tree per five spaces.  Parking lot trees 
should be capable of achieving 30% canopy coverage over the 
parking area within 10 years of planting. 

� Rain Gardens Provide bioretention areas, or rain gardens, between every other 
row of parking. 

� Permeable Surface Use permeable concrete and pavers on 15% of the surface 
parking lot. 

� Strategic Parking Submit on of the following Strategic Parking Plans: 
 Parking Reclamation Plan – Create a parking reclamation plan 

that includes specific strategies to reclaim surplus parking 
spaces to expand structures and usable open spaces or create 
new ones.  Developers should anticipate changes in parking 
demand and design their site to create opportunities for 
adaptable reuse. 

 Parking Flex Plan – Create a parking flex plan that shows how 
parking spaces can be temporarily used for something other 
than parking, such as festivals, outdoor dining, community 
gatherings, and other events.  The plan should identify the 
parking spaces and describe how they will be used. 

x

x

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items
Page 1 of 4



 Phased Parking Plan – Create a phased parking plan and 
construct parking spaces in phases as demand requires.  Areas 
intended for future parking phases would remain as green 
spaces until converted to parking spaces.  If, after five years, 
future parking spaces have not been constructed, they shall 
become permanent green space. 

 Circle or highlight selected parking plan. 
� Ceremonial Drive Developments over 20 acres or developments that include 

multiple lots/buildings shall provide a grand promenade or 
ceremonial drive with trees planted every 30 feet. 

� Gateway Developments over 20 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall use site layout and building 
placement to create a gateway, frame usable open space, or 
create a view corridor with appropriate terminus. 

� Park Once Environment (1.5) Developments over 10 acres or developments that include 
multiple lots/buildings shall use site layout and building 
placement to create a park once environment. 

 Shared parking agreements between different lots/occupants 
must be in place. 

Building Design (Select at Least Six Menu Items) 
 If Selected Menu Item Description 

� Materials Mix A single material, color, or texture shall not exceed 60% of a 
single facade. 

� Stone Accent All four facades shall include a stone accent in a contrasting color 
and texture from the primary building material.  The combined 
area of the stone accent shall be at least 25% of the vertical 
surface area of all facades. 

� Color Contrast Each facade shall include at least two contrasting colors. 
� Specialty Accent Color and/or material shall be used to highlight entrances of 

multi-tenant buildings.  Specialty accents should reflect the 
personality or character of the occupant. 

� Corner Treatment Developers shall use at least three architectural elements to 
emphasize corners of the buildings: corner entrance, accent 
material, projecting cornice, tower element, enhanced windows, 
cupolas, gables, dormers, balconies, articulation, or a comparable 
element chosen by the developer.  Corner treatments must be 
one of the Menu Items for buildings at key intersections. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed architectural elements. 
� Articulated Public Entrance The primary building entrance shall be visibly prominent from a 

public street.  At least three of the following shall be used: 
recessed facade, projecting facade, raised canopy, taller door 
dimensions, double doors, lighting fixtures on either side of the 
entry, steps or stoops, changes in materials, arches, columns, 
eave treatment, transom windows, or a comparable element 
chosen by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed elements. 
� Buildings at Key Intersections Developers should highlight key intersections by using additional 

design elements to create gateways or landmarks.  Buildings at 
key intersections shall include at least three of the following 
features: corner plaza with plantings and seating, corner tower 
form, cupolas, large window openings, sloped or pitched roof 
form, richer colors, seasonal plantings, or a comparable element 
chosen by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed features. 
� Roof Profile Variation Developers shall use parapets or another technique to create a 

distinctive roof profile. 
� Articulation Elements Each facade shall include at least three of the following items 

every 60 feet: change in roofline, facade modulation, window 

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items
Page 2 of 4



fenestration patterns, vertical columns, and change in material or 
texture. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed items. 
� Enhanced Windows All facades with windows shall include at least two types of 

windows that differ in the style, size, shape, or placement. 
� Canopy Variation Facades shall include multiple types of canopies.  Changes in 

shape, color, or material should be used to highlight an 
architectural feature or particular user while complementing the 
established design theme. 

 It is likely that individual tenants will determine the final design 
of the canopy.  If tenants are unknown at this time, submit an 
exhibit that illustrates variations in shape, color, and material 
within the intended design theme. 

� Design Elements Facades shall include at least three other design elements: 
trellises, towers, overhang eves, banding, pilasters, projecting 
cornices, columns, string courses, rustication, lintels, or a 
comparable element proposed by the developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed design elements. 
Healthy, Smart, and Sustainable Community (Select at Least Two Menu Items) 

 If Selected Menu Item Description 
� Mature Trees Provide mature trees for 30% of required trees.  The locations of 

the mature trees should be focused in usable open spaces and 
along pedestrian paths. 

� Connect to Parks and/or Trails Provide a connection to existing or proposed parks and/or trails.  
The connection should function as a continuation, not just a point 
of access.  The connection shall include appropriate amenities 
such as bike racks, pet waste disposal stations, water fountains, 
misting stations, or a comparable amenity proposed by the 
developer. 

 Circle or highlight the proposed amenities. 
� Community Garden Provide a community garden and participate in the City’s 

community gardens partnership program. 
� Parking Reclamation Plan Create a parking reclamation plan that includes specific strategies 

to reclaim surplus parking spaces to expand structures and usable 
open spaces or create new ones.  Developers should anticipate 
changes in parking demand and design their site to create 
opportunities for adaptable reuse. 

� Parking Flex Plan Create a parking flex plan that shows how parking spaces can be 
temporarily used for something other than parking, such as 
festivals, outdoor dining, community gatherings, and other 
events.  The plan should identify the parking spaces and describe 
how they will be used. 

� Phased Parking Plan Create a phased parking plan and construct parking spaces in 
phases as demand requires.  Areas intended for future parking 
phases would remain as green space until converted to parking 
spaces.  If, after five years, future parking phases have not been 
constructed, they shall become permanent green space. 

� Green Infrastructure Provide and maintain green infrastructure such as bioretention 
areas (rain gardens), planter boxes, or vegetated buffer strips 
consistent with NCTCOG’s integrated Stormwater Management 
(iSWM) Program. 

� Solar Energy Use solar energy to satisfy 25% or more of on-site energy 
demand. 

� Preserve Open Space Reserve existing natural areas comprising at least 5% of the 
overall project size.  Such areas should incorporate quality non-
invasive tree stands, habitat or riparian areas.  Such areas should 
not include existing floodplain or other areas already protected or 
inherently unsuitable for development. 

x

x

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items
Page 3 of 4



� 70% Native Plants Use native and drought tolerant species for at least 70% of 
planting materials. 

� Wi-Fi (.5) Provide Free Wi-Fi in common areas. 
� USB Charging Stations (.5) Provide USB charging stations in usable open spaces. 
� Smart Parking (.5) Provide web-connected sensors in pavement that help people 

find and/or reserve a parking space. 
� Ride-Sharing Drop-Off (.5) Provide designated spaces for ride-sharing pick-ups and drop-

offs. 
� Permeable Paving (.5) Use permeable pavement on 15% of the parking lot. 
� Green Roofs (.5) Provide a green roof that is at least 50% of total roof area. 
� Living Wall (.5) Provide a living wall that is at least 60% of the area of the facade 

on which it is constructed. 
� Recycling Program (.5) Institute a mandatory recycling program for occupants.  Provide 

recycling bins in addition to trash bins in common areas. 
� 30% Native Plants (.5) Use native and drought tolerant species for at least 30% of 

planting materials. 
� Pollinator Friendly Flowers (.5) Use native plants that attract bees, butterflies, moths, and 

hummingbirds for at least 20% of required landscape materials. 
Alternative Compliance 
The Menu Items listed do not represent an exhaustive list.  Developers may propose a comparable item not listed.  If developers are 
able to prove that the proposed item meets the intent of Appendix F, Staff may recommend that the proposed item be counted as a 
Menu Item.  Indicate the proposed item, identify which of the four elements the proposed item will count towards, and provide a 
brief description. 

 If Selected Proposed Item/Element Description 
�   

�   

�   

�   

 

Menu Item Summary Table 
Element # of Menu Items 
Usable Open Space & Pedestrian Walkways  
Site Design & Building Orientation  
Building Design  
Healthy, Smart, Sustainable Community  
Alternative Compliance  
Total Menu Items:  
 

x White Concrete Pavement

x

x
x

Concrete pavement with a higher reflective
value to reduce urban heat island effect.

2
9
2
1
14

Exhibit E - Appendix F Menu Items
Page 4 of 4



1 gal.

(18) DYP BIC

AK

250 ASIAN

JASMINE

8 BLUE

YUCCA

20 MAIDEN

GRASS

15 MUHLY

GRASS

4 SPARTAN

JUNIPER

MENU

BOARD

90 ANNUAL

COLOR

12 MUHLY

GRASS

NATIVE RIVER ROC

4"-6" (SUBMIT SAMPLE TO

FOR APPROVAL)

3 YAUPON

HOLLY

7 FOXTAIL

AGAVE

17 CLARA HAW

 HAWTHORN

14 MAIDE

GRASS

ABBEVIL

VITEX

20 TEXAS

LANTANA

Attachment i  Examples of Enhanced Landscape Area


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10218
	PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10219
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711838&GUID=0C3D354B-EED7-4C00-AD91-9EB8F28517AE
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711847&GUID=57D5722F-74F4-4A61-9903-4759950488B6
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711849&GUID=65758C33-651E-432B-8403-6077365CEABD
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10220
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8712203&GUID=762CA4F6-B98B-469A-9EA1-D578D7618B18
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8712204&GUID=D1C50E67-C88E-4EC9-9BD6-0244A6142193
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8712205&GUID=87EAB43B-23E6-45C5-ADB0-1ADDB268B8C7
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10158
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711851&GUID=DFCE6F51-8C47-4652-A08C-A5634E283074
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711852&GUID=28FA460D-9132-4E7E-94D2-94BBC88B2130
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711854&GUID=B6F68539-E24C-4EF5-9853-A19B905AFC82
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8713235&GUID=20DFA419-418C-4106-859D-A2C1A7045A32
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10221
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711866&GUID=3D00355F-787F-433B-AFFA-7A0FA963D607
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711869&GUID=5C1D8611-2F4C-4CED-B6B3-71AA61DFB87C
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711870&GUID=F0012ED5-50C5-4498-906C-2F0CCEFEBCBF
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8711871&GUID=5A2ED086-7EB5-4789-B568-3F529D727D5B
	Appendix F Checklist_.pdf
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8712942&GUID=A9F13EE1-FAB6-41A0-9D5B-C19AA6680B79


